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Project: Marquette Manor – Interior and Exterior Improvements  
        1999 Sutter Avenue 
        Cincinnati, OH 45225 
 
Addendum #3 
All drawing revisions are clouded and tagged with “delta 2.” 
 

Questions Received from Bidders: 

1) A few openings on the door schedule have ETR listed for door and/or frame material, but most of these 
openings have notes on the demolition plans to remove existing door, frame, and hardware. Please clarify if 
these will need new doors/frames or if they should be existing to remain as listed on the door schedule. 

All doors, frames and hardware are to be replaced with new on this project. See below.  

i. 002 & 003 – door and frame listed as ETR. These do not have remark D3 on the demo plans, so I 
assume these are ETR. 

Demo note D3 has been added for the above doors to be demolished on Overall Basement 
Demolition Plan. Common Area door schedule has been updated to show new insulated hollow 
metal doors and new hollow metal frames at these locations. Refer to specifications for hardware. 

ii. 010A – door and frame listed as ETR. This opening has remark D3 to remove existing door frame 
and hardware. Should this be a new opening, or ETR? 

Demo note D3 has been added for the above door to be demolished on Overall Basement 
Demolition Plan. Common area door schedule has been updated to show new insulated hollow 
metal doors and new hollow metal frames at these locations. Refer to specifications for hardware.  

iii. 109, 111, 112, & SB-1 – All (4) have ETR listed for the frame. They all also have remark D3 on 
the demo plans. Should these receive a new frame, or will it be ETR? 

The above doors are all to receive new hollow metal frames. The Common Area Door Schedule has 
been updated to show new hollow metal frames with painted finish.  

2) For the Unit Doors/Frames/Hardware – Should all be replaced and provided as new per the door 
schedule? 

All unit doors frames and hardware are to be new per the unit door schedules. Unit entries will be new 
  doors, frames, and hardware at existing openings. All others within units are entirely new.  

i. Plan pages A6.01, A6.02, & A6.03 enlarged unit plans on the bottom right have door & door 
hardware notes which call for several different things and is not very clear. 
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The general notes regarding unit doors have been updated to reflect the intention of new doors 
throughout the dwelling units. 

3) Can a spec be provided for the toilet partitions? 
 
Shown on Sheet A7.01B “Common Area Accessory Schedule”, nomenclature AC-2 & AC-3 
 

4) In regard to cut/fill for the proposed exterior recreation area shown on AS plans, information is required for 
existing and proposed elevations to bid on the sitework portion. Is there a cut or fill required?  

The approximate cut for this area is roughly 650 cubic yards. The fill for this area is approximately 75 
cubic yards. The approximate fill for the new entryway is approximately 75 cubic yards. Also refer to 
unit price section of revise bid form 

5) The recent addendum for Marquette Manor changed the monument letterset to be illuminated, but does not 
specify whether it should be front or back-lit. Can you please confirm which? 

 Backlit. 

6) There are not plans or specs for fire suppression. The building is fully sprinklered and there are major 
modifications to layouts which would require fire suppression rework throughout. Can you please clarify 
what is the intent for fire suppression?  Will there be modifications to plans/specs to add this scope into the 
project? 

Existing sprinklers lines in both the common areas and units are to be modified to maintain required 
coverage. The general contractor is responsible for providing fire protection drawings and specifications 
by a licensed fire protection designer, including both the automatic fire sprinkler system and the fire alarm 
system. 
 

7) For the building permit fee calculation, can you provide what budget of the project was applied for?  
The contractor should base the permit fee on their own bid amount. 

8) Per Addendum #2, “An asbestos survey of the building is attached. Contractors are responsible for removal 
and disposal of all asbestos materials disturbed during the renovations. All work to be performed in 
accordance with local codes and regulations.”  I have a few questions as per this requirement:  

i. It states, “removal and disposal of all asbestos”.  I think this note should be revised to all “identified 
material in report”. As current written, even unknown scopes of work are being expected to be 
included bid scope.  
The contractor is to address all know ACM in an appropriate manner. Changes to scope of 
work will be addressed through the change order process. 

ii. On the 3rd page of the report, there is a note in the report that states “The identified ACMs are 
denoted in bold type (which nothing is in bold). In addition, the following materials were observed 
but not sampled and considered to be suspect asbestos-containing materials until appropriate 
sampling proves otherwise; unsampled vinyl flooring, covebase and mastics, unsampled caulking 
and roofing material”. Are we to assume that all these materials are to be treated as asbestos in the 
bid?  
ACMs are identified in the % asbestos column even though they are not in bold. Contractor is 
to assume all items matching the description contain asbestos. Contractor is to assume the 
suspect ACM not sampled, but found during the renovations, are ACM until proven otherwise. 

iii. On the 3rd page of the report it states, “textured ceiling materials and drywall joint compound are 
typically considered to be non-friable materials, so long as they are not impacted and are not 
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suspected to present a concern to residents…” During the prebid walk, it was witnessed that these 
ceiling texture materials are commonly flaking and falling away from substrates. What is the 
expectation for ceiling textures? For drywall, are we to assume that at all loctaions where demolition 
is design, where MEP work is required to cut through or access behind, that these need ot be treated 
as asbestos completely? As related to the answers above, what is expectation for drywall patching?  
All friable ACM is to be removed. This includes ACM made friable by renovation activities. 

iv. Can scopes of work be quantified for bidding purposes so all bidders are working with the same 
information as currently the report does not provided quantities.  
Contractors to determine quantities based upon information in the drawings. 
 

9) Wood Doors - The specs and plans contradict each other a little and I am just wanting to get some clarification 
on what should be provided. 

i. The specs call for hollow core wood doors. It also lists out both factory finishing and primed 
hardboard.   
All doors must be solid core, disregard any notations stating hollow core. 

ii. The plans have “SCW” listed as the material that would be calling for solid core wood and show a 
thickness of 1-3/4” that would also indicate solid core (hollow would be 1-3/8”). The door 
schedule also calls for a painted finish that would make me think we should provide factory primed 
hardboard doors. 

1. Should we quote these as 1-3/8” thick hollow core wood doors or 1-3/4” thick solid 
core wood doors? Doors are to be 1-3/4” thick solid core. 

2. Should these doors be factory primed hardboard? Yes. 
 

10) HVAC - The PTAC unit spec’d out and doing a rough measurement the existing units are roughly 10” tall. The 
units that are spec’ed out are 15-1/2” tall. I don’t believe there was any room for the added height. What is 
expectation for adapting for increased height of units? 
The proposed PTAC units are expected to fit within the existing structural opening. Provide perimeter trim 
and sealant to close all gaps. Provide new exterior louver. Color of all accessory components and 
exterior louver to match existing window system. 

 
 

Specifications 
 
Bid Form Replace the bid form with the attached updated bid form. Note that Unit Price #2 has 

been replaced. All existing toilet paper holders are to be removed and replaced with new. 
The new unit prices #2 and #3 relate to cut/fill for the required site work. 

  
018113   Green Building Information added. 
 
 
Construction Documents: 
 
Architectural Demolition 
 
D1.01  Note D3 added to doors 002, 003, and 101A.  

 
Site Drawings 
 
AS.03  Added dimensions to section 2 & 3.  

Called out concrete stair riser and height. ￼ 
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Architectural 
 
A2.06  Details revised to provide roller shades at certain storefronts.   
A7.00  Door schedule has been updated to show all new doors, frames, and hardware for  
    entire project.  

Additional general notes have been added regarding accessibility.  
 

END OF ADDENDUM 
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BID FORM 
 

SOLICITATION #: 2024-3007 
 

Marquette Manor RAD Conversion Renovations  
1999 Sutter Avenue, Cincinnati, Ohio 45225 

 
TO THE CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY (CMHA) 
 
Ladies and/or Gentlemen: 
 
1. In submitting this bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Cincinnati Metropolitan 

Housing Authority to reject any and all bids.  If written notice of the acceptance of this bid is 
mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned within 90 days after the opening thereof, 
or at any time thereafter before this bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and 
deliver a contract in the prescribed form and furnish the required bond and insurance 
certifications no later than 10 days after the "Notice of Intent". 

 
2. Security in the sum of         Dollars  

($   ) in the form of        
is submitted herewith in accordance with the Specifications. 

 
3. Attached hereto is an affidavit in proof that the undersigned has not entered into any 

collusion with any person in respect to this bid or any other bid or the submitting of bids for 
the contract for which this bid is submitted.  Also attached is a completed Form HUD-5369-
A, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders. 

 
4. Work under this Contract will begin immediately upon the successful Contractor's receipt of 

a "Notice to Proceed" from CMHA.  "Notice to Proceed" will follow the completion of an 
executed contract. 

 
5. ADDENDA 
 
 Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda: 

ADDENDUM NO. _____________________DATED ____________________ 
ADDENDUM NO. _____________________DATED ____________________ 
ADDENDUM NO. _____________________DATED ____________________ 
ADDENDUM NO. _____________________DATED ____________________ 

 
6. UNIT PRICES SCHEDULE 
The undersigned Bidder proposes the amounts below be added to or deducted from the Contract 
Sum on performance and measurement of the individual items of Work. 
 
Unit-Price No. 1: Brick mortar joint repointing. Include 20% in the base bid. Unit of measurement: 
square foot. 
 
  _____________________________ Dollars ($____________) per square foot.  
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Unit-Price No. 2:  Cut and remove soil from site as needed to complete the proposed site work. 
Cut/fill with on-site material is considered grading and to be included in the base bid, not as part of 
the unit price. Include 650 cubic yards in the base bid. Unit of measurement: cubic yards. 
 
  _____________________________ Dollars ($____________) per cubic yard.  
 
 
Unit-Price No. 3:  Provide fill soil of the proper quality to maintain the proposed slopes as needed to 
complete the proposed site work. Cut/fill with on-site material is considered grading and to be 
included in the base bid, not as part of the unit price. Include 150 cubic yards in the base bid. Unit of 
measurement: cubic yards. 
 
  _____________________________ Dollars ($____________) per cubic yard.  
 
 
7. ALTERNATES SCHEDULE 
 

A. The undersigned Bidder proposes the amount below be deducted from the Base Bid if 
alternates are accepted by Owner.  Amounts listed for each alternate include costs of 
related coordination, modification, or adjustment. 

 
Alternate No. 1: Use Resilient Flooring RF-2 in lieu of Sealed Concrete SC-1 at all areas 
noted as SC-1 on the finish plans and schedule. 
 
ADD    or    DEDUCT    (circle one) 
   
__________________________________________________ Dollars ($____________). 

 

B. Owner reserves the right to reject or accept, in order, and to award or amend the Contract 
accordingly within 60 days of the Notice of Award unless otherwise indicated in the 
Contract Documents. 

C. Acceptance or non-acceptance of any alternates by the Owner shall have no affect on the 
Contract Time.  

 
 
8. BASIS OF CONTRACT AWARD 
 

CMHA intends to award this contract for SOLICITATION NO. 2024-3007 entitled 
“Marquette Manor RAD Conversion Renovations”, to the responsible bidder submitting 
the LOWEST "TOTAL BID" complying with these Public Bid Specifications, Drawings and 
Addenda, if any, provided the Contractor's, bid is reasonable and it is in the best interest of 
CMHA to accept it.  The LOWEST "TOTAL BID" will be the bid reflecting the lowest dollar 
amount in the "TOTAL BID". 

 
The undersigned having familiarized themselves with the local conditions affecting the cost 
of the work, and with the Drawings and Specifications, issued and Addenda, if any thereto, 
as prepared by the Development Division of the Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority, 
propose to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, permits and services required to complete 
the work identified herein at the prices listed below. 
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9. CONTRACT TIME 
 

The contract performance period from the "Notice to Proceed" until substantial completion, 
will be 425 calendar days for the “Total Bid”. 

 
 
10. BID AMOUNT - TOTAL 
 

The total Bid Amount all work indicated in the Specification, Drawings and Addendums. 
 
 

TOTAL BID SUM OF (WORDS) 
 
          DOLLARS. 
 
TOTAL BID SUM OF (FIGURES)  $       . 
 
NOTE: The Total Bid Amount shall be shown in both words and figures; in case of discrepancy, the 

amount in words shall govern.  To be valid bid, the bid form must be filled out in it's entirety 
with all certifications and affidavits.  It must be submitted with and is part of the Bid 
Documents. 

 
The penalty for making false statements in any offer is prescribed in 19 U.S.C. 1001. 
 
Date:                    
 
Company:       Address:     
 
By:        City, State, Zip      
 
Title:        Fed. Tax ID:      
(Signature of Bidder) 
 
NOTE: LATE BIDS WILL NOT BE RECEIVED.  THE LOBBY CLOCK ESTABLISHES THE TIME 

FOR THE BID OPENING. 
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SECTION 018113 

SUSTAINABILITY DESIGN REQUIREMENTS 

 

PART 1 GENERAL 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
A. The General Conditions, Modifications to General Conditions, Supplementary or Special

Conditions and any Instructions to Bidders shall apply to all Divisions of work.
B. The requirements of State, Local or appropriate codes applicable to the work, whichever is the

most stringent is a requirement of all Divisions of work.

WORK OF THIS SECTION 
A. Section includes:

1. Sustainable Project Goals:
a. Applicants must obtain a sustainable building certification - National Green Building Standard

(NGBS), meeting Silver level or higher for single and multifamily buildings, both new and
renovation.

B. Contractor shall coordinate work and requirements with Owner Contracted Green Rater/Verifier
for Green certifications. Pertinent to green certifications the role of the Green Rater/Verifier is to
guide the construction team with certification process; review documentation, verify green
requirements are met; and to perform third-party testing.

REFERENCES 
A. American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers:

1. ASHRAE 52.2 - Method of Testing General Ventilation Air-Cleaning Devices for Removal
Efficiency by Particle Size.

2. ASHRAE 62 - Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality.
3. ASHRAE 90.1 - Energy Efficient Design of New Buildings except Low-Rise Residential

Buildings.
4. ASHRAE 129 - Measuring Air-Change Effectiveness.

B. ASTM International:
1. ASTM E408 - Standard Test Methods for Total Normal Emittance of Surfaces Using

Inspection-Meter Techniques.
2. ASTM E903 - Standard Test Method for Solar Absorption, Reflectance, and

Transmittance of Materials Using Integrating Spheres.
C. Bay Area Air Quality Management District: BAAQMD Regulation 8, Rule 51 - Adhesive and

Sealant Products.
D. Carpet and Rug Institute: CRI Green Label Testing Program.
E. Forest Stewardship Council: FSC Guidelines- Forest Stewardship Council Guidelines.
F. Green Seal: GS-11 - Product Specific Environmental Requirements.
G. Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors: SMACNA IAQ - IAQ Guidelines for Occupied

Buildings under Construction.
H. South Coast Air Quality Management District: SCAQMD Rule 1168 - Adhesive and Sealant

Applications.
I. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:

1. EPA 832-R-92-005 - Storm Water Management for Construction Activities: Developing
Pollution Prevention Plans and Best Management Practices.

2. EPA Baseline IAQ - Testing for Indoor Air Quality, Baseline IAQ, and Materials Section
01445.

3. EPA 402-K-01-002  A Step-by-Step Guide on how to Build Radon-Resistant Homes
J. 

1. ICC/ASHRAE 700 National Green Building Standard (NGBS)
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K. ENERGY STAR Qualified Homes Program Requirements
https://www.energystar.gov/sites/default/files/ES%20NPR%20v85%202018-05-16_clean.pdf

SUBMITTALS 
A. The contractor shall submit the following items directly to the Green Rater/Verifier.

QUALITY ASSURANCE 
1. Perform work in accordance with ICC/ASHRAE 700 National Green Building Standard
2. Maintain one copy of NGBS Builder Resource Guide on site. Document is available for download

at
https://www.homeinnovation.com/services/certification/green_homes/multifamily_certifi
cation/multifamily_home_certification_process

3. Perform storm water management and erosion control Work in accordance with EPA Best
Management Practices or local erosion and sedimentation control standards whichever is more
stringent.

4. Perform ventilation Work in accordance with ASHRAE 62.

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

PRODUCT SUBSTITUTION 
A. Thoroughly review any requests for substitution for products that are related to Green

to obtain certification.

PART 3   EXECUTION 

NATIONAL GREEN BUILDING STANDARD (NGBS) 

A. Perform work in accordance with ICC/ASHRAE 700 National Green Building Standard for
mandatory and optional provisions pertinent to this project listed in NGBS worksheet included
at the end of this section.

B. Thoroughly review any requests for substitution for products that are related to NGBS

certification.

PERFORMANCE TESTING & INSPECTIONS 

C. Minimum envelope leakage  where applicable: the following areas of building envelope and
demising walls shall be sealed, caulked, gasketed, or weather-stripped to minimize envelope
leakage:
1. Joints around exterior doors and windows.
2. Joints between walls and foundation; between conditioned spaces and attics, demising

walls, crawl spaces and garage.
3. Top plates and bottom plates shall be sealed at all locations.
4. Minimize thermal bridging per Energy Star Version 3 Thermal Enclosure System Rater

Checklist
5. All mechanical, plumbing and electrical penetrations in exterior and demising walls.

Mechanical chase shall be sealed at crawl space ceiling.
6. Exterior sheathing and house wrap.
7. Minimize entry of air from outside, attic, garage, and crawl space into exterior wall and

interior wall cavities to ensure passing of air infiltration test. Also minimize air transfer
from unit to unit, and unit to corridor.
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8. Batt insulation shall be stapled to face of stud to ensure full contact of insulation with face
of drywall. Cut insulation around all mechanical, plumbing and electrical work.

9. Seal all duct boots in floors to subfloors and seal all duct boots in walls to drywall.
10. Seal gaps between drywall and all duct penetrations in ceilings, including exhaust fans.

D. Thermal Bypass Inspection - The Green Rater will conduct a visual Thermal Bypass
Inspection to inspect proper installation and continuity of thermal insulation and air-tightness
of envelope. This inspection must take place after exterior envelope insulation has been
installed, but prior to and installation of any drywall. One inspection per floor shall be
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conducted. If additional inspections are deemed necessary due construction sequencing, 
Contractor shall notify the Architect and Green Verifier immediately. Contractor shall 
schedule the inspection with no less than two week notice to the Green Verifier. Contractor 
shall provide access to each unit and cooperate with conducting of the test. Additional 
inspections necessary due to incomplete work shall be back-charged to the Contractor. A 
sample Thermal Bypass Inspection Checklist is enclosed in section 018113. 

E. Final Inspections - Upon substantial completion and prior to occupancy, the Green Verifier
will conduct a visual Final Inspection to verify green requirements incorporated in the project.
The contractor shall notify the Green Rater at least four (4) weeks prior to the anticipated
date for such inspection. Contractor shall provide access to each unit and cooperate with
conducting of the test. Additional inspections necessary due to incomplete work shall be
back-charged to the Contractor.

F. Third-Party Testing - Third-party Testing is to be scheduled and conducted in conjunction
with the final inspection. The contractor shall notify the Green Verifier at least four (4) weeks
prior to the anticipated date for such inspection. Contractor shall provide access to each unit
and cooperate with conducting of the test.

Following tests shall be conducted by Green Verifier: 
1. Air Infiltration Test (Blower door Test)  Mandatory  Measures air leakage through unit

enclosure such as exterior walls, demising walls, ceilings, chases, etc.
2. Distribution Loss Test (Duct Blaster Test)  Mandatory  Measures leakage through the

mechanical distribution system

ENCLOSURES 

A. National Green Building Standard (NGBS) worksheet

END OF SECTION 018113 
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